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NORTHERN VISION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
2017 ANNUAL REPORT TO UNITHOLDERS 
 

We are pleased to provide you with this annual report on the activities of Northern Vision Development Limited 

Partnership (“NVD” or “the Partnership”). Included herewith are financial statements as at and for the year 

ended December 31, 2017 audited by Deloitte LLP, along with comparable results for the previous year.   

 

The Partnership’s Annual General Meeting will be held at 5:30 pm (Mountain Time) on Tuesday May 29, 2018 

at the offices of OPUS Corporation at 500, 5119 Elbow Drive SW, Calgary Alberta. It will be proceeded by the 

annual meeting of shareholders of Northern Vision Development Corp (the General Partner) at 5:00 pm 

(Mountain Time) on that date. We invite all interested stakeholders to join us for the Limited Partner Annual 

General Meeting, to receive an update on the progress of the Partnership as well as information about future 

plans. For our Yukon-based investors, a follow up information meeting will be held in Whitehorse, at 5:00 pm 

on Tuesday June 5, 2018, at the Coast High Country Inn and Convention Centre.  

 

 
Overview  
 
NVD is a private real estate partnership established in February 2004.  The Partnership owns and manages 

hospitality, commercial and residential assets located in Canada’s Yukon Territory. It also holds a portfolio of 

lands for sale or development. From time to time, it develops these lands into real estate assets that it either 

manages or sells. NVD is managed by its general partner, Northern Vision Development Corp., a private 

company based in Whitehorse and formed under the laws of the Yukon.  The operations of the Partnership are 

overseen by a board of directors comprised of individuals with a diverse mix of skill sets, including experience in 

the real estate and hospitality industries.  

 

As at December 31, 2017 23,965,715 units of the Partnership were outstanding (2016 - 21,291,434 units) with 

no options or purchase warrants issued. The Net Asset Value (“NAV”) is estimated at $2.55 per basic and fully 

diluted unit as at December 31, 2017 (2016 - $2.35 basic and fully diluted per unit) as estimated by 

management and approved by the Board of Directors, based on updates that rely on the methodology and 

assumptions used in the most recent third-party valuations for NVD’s assets. During the year distributions to 

unitholders of a cumulative $2,500,000 were declared and paid in in March and October (11.3 cents per 

weighted unit (2016 - 3.6 cents per unit)). A distribution of $1.0 million (4.4 cents per unit) has been declared 

and will be paid in early April as the first distribution in 2018. 
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2017 Highlights  

 
Financial results for 2017 were solid, representing a significant improvement over the previous year. Following 
are key highlights of the Partnership’s financial and operational achievements: 
 

• A private placement in August 2017 raised $5.3 million at $2.10 per unit. Net of utilizing $2.55 million as 
liquidity for existing unitholders, a total of 1,313,126 new units were issued for proceeds of $2.76 million; 

• In October 2017 the Partnership introduced a Distribution Reinvestment Program (“DRP”) allowing 
unitholders to redirect some or all distributions into investment in the Partnership at a 5% discount to 
most recently published NAV per unit. 23.3% of the distribution ($323,200) was reinvested pursuant to the 
DRP and, as a result, 160,334 units in the Partnership at $2.33 per unit were issued;  

• The Main Steele building on Main Street and Third Avenue in Whitehorse, Yukon was purchased for 
$1,100,000 in cash and the issuance of 1,200,811 units. The building adds 17,876 of commercial leasable 
square footage to NVD’s Real Estate portfolio (an increase of 11.1%). The Main Steele building was recently 
appraised at a value of $4.2 million; 

• Combining the three events noted above, the Partnership increased the number of outstanding units 
during the year by 12.5% to 23,965,715; 

• Loans Receivable balances were reduced by 29.4% from $1.33 million to $939,000; 

• Book Value of Assets grew by 12.7% to $65 million, from $57.6 million at the end of 2016, due primarily to 
the acquisition of the Main Steele property, renovation of the Edgewater and acquisition of lands 
contiguous with the Partnership’s Waterfront Development lots.  

• The last three Titanium Way lots were sold in the fist half of the year, completing this development and 
sales project, with gross sales of $9.2 million and total gains of $3.9 million for the entire project involving 
the servicing and sale of 48 lots over the course of the last 10 years; 

• Book Value of Debt to Equity dropped to 1.04:1 as at December 31, 2017 from 1.29:1 a year earlier and 
Debt to Market Value of Equity declined from 0.64:1 to 0.53:1 at the end of the year.  

• Revenues before extraordinary item were up by 12.6% to $18.9 million as a result of strong growth in Hotel 
Revenues and a return to reasonable growth levels from the Rental Division. 

• Sales of properties held for sale more than doubled to $581,000; 

• Gross Margin increased at a faster pace than revenues, up 16.8% to $7.1 million; 

• Interest expense was flat year over year at $1.28 million, despite a move to a fixed rate skew in June, just 
prior to the first interest rate move by the Bank of Canada, which substantially reduced the Partnership’s 
interest rate risk; 

• At year end, fixed rate loans represented 79% of NVD’s mortgage portfolio; 

• Income from Operations, an important indicator of 
cash available for distributions, was up 57% to $2.2 
million versus $1.4 million in 2016; 

• An extraordinary income item of $700,000 was 
realized during the year relating to the early 
termination of a lease with Loblaws, and the 
subsequent re-leasing of those premises; 

 

With a return to equity raising activities in 2017, both asset value 
and income performance were on the rise 

 



 
 

NVDLP Annual Report to Unitholders  
As at and for the year ended December 31, 2017 

 

 PAGE 4 

 

• Hotel Division operating income of $4.4 million was at record levels and was 16% ahead of the previous 
record high, set a year earlier. 

• Net Income recorded a 94.7% increase to $3.14 million for the year ending December 31, 2017; 

• Recorded Available Funds from Operations (“AFFO”) of $2.44 million, a 83.6% increase over 2016, and 
declared distributions totaling $2.5 million during the year. (AFFO of $1.14 million and distribution of 
$750,000 in 2016). From 2015 to 2017 a cumulative total of 69.5% of AFFO has been distributed to 
unitholders. 

 
 

 
Net Income exceeded $3 million for the first time in 
Partnership history, mostly as a result of record 
performance from both the Hotel and Real Estate 
Operating Divisions. However an extraordinary item 
totaling $700,000 related to a lease termination payment 
ensured a record result. Gains contributed a further 
$356,000. 
  
The results continued a multi year growth trend that 
commenced after the Partnership reached temporary low 
levels of perfromance in the middle of the recessionary 
period in 2014. 
 
 

 

 
Net Income excluding gains on sales and  

income from development and sales activity (both of 
which are naturally lumpy in nature) provides insight 
into the growing sources of sustained revenues upon 

which regular distributions are based.  
 

This graph highlights the strength of the performance 
of the operating divisions in  recent years, 

culminating in record  performance from both the 
Real Estate  and Hotel Divisions in 2017. Keep in mind  

that results in 2017 also benefited from a  one time 
extraordinary lease termination payment that was 

material ($700,000). 
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“The past year was a 

successful one for the 

Partnership…” 

 

CEO’s Letter to Unitholders 

 
Dear Unitholders: 
 
The past year was a successful one for the Partnership.  

Among other accomplishments we paid two distributions to unitholders during the year for the first time, totaling 

$2.5 million, which represented a significant advance toward acceptable yield. We also completed the renovation 

of the Edgewater Hotel, which not only received rave reviews, but also achieved financial outcomes that first met, 

and then exceeded our expectations. For the first time ever, our Coast High Country Inn significantly exceeded the 

return on investment we expected from this property, delivering significantly above budget performance. We 

returned to acquisition activity with the purchase of the Main Steele property, which added roughly 11% to our 

commercial lease inventory. Main Steele is a well-located property on Main Street in Whitehorse with strong 

tenants in place. We also returned in a significant way to raising new equity for the Partnership, with a Private 

Placement, the issuance of units as part of the Main Steele purchase and the introduction of our Distribution 

Reinvestment Program (“DRP”) which combined to increase total units outstanding in the Partnership by 12.5% 

during the year. These moves substantially increased the strength of our balance sheet and further reduced the 

debt to equity ratios for NVD, putting us in strong position as we 

enter a more aggressive development phase for the first time since 

before the Yukon recession from 2013 to 2015.  

The highlights section of this report provides a detailed summary of 

key financial and operating accomplishments during the year and I do 

not repeat them here, other than to say we were pleased to achieve 

record high Net Income levels – a record that while achieved in part due to an extraordinary lease termination 

payment, is still extremely satisfying because it was largely achieved from sustained income sources, namely our 

Hotel and Real Estate operating divisions. Net book value of assets now exceeds $60 million and the enterprise 

value of the Partnership exceeds $90 million on a Fair Market Value basis. The growth of the Net Asset Value 

(“NAV”) of the Partnership, coupled with regular and growing distributions, has helped in attracting equity 

support. This means we can adopt aggressive growth goals while keeping an eye on growing yield to investors. 

With an already strong Yukon economy that shows some encouraging signs of sustained growth, all the elements 

are in place for some significant outcomes for the Partnership in the years ahead. 

Your partnership has taken care to grow a strong and professional management team and to invest in our assets. 

The investment in both Human Resources and Physical Plant is not just paying off in annual yield growth, but also 

in the strength of NVD’s reputation. We therefore feel comfortable setting in place a five-year plan aimed at 

doubling the enterprise value of the company while seeing strong growth in both the Net Asset Value and yield per 

unit. Proceeds from development activities may allow us to improve on that yield in the interim period, but that 

will take the form of special distributions from non-sustainable revenue sources. While there are some risks 

associated with this strategy – including factors such as increased competition, a change in direction of the 

resource-based economy and/or an improvement in the strength of the Canadian dollar which would negatively 

impact the Yukon tourism industry, to name a few - we feel that we have the necessary groundwork in place to 

allow us to advance on these aggressive plans with confidence.  

While renovations, acquisition and operational performance were all components of the strong results reported 

for 2017, other moves were made that will benefit the Partnership over the long term. As investors will know from 

previous reports, we were keeping an eye on the right timing to shift our mortgage debt portfolio from a variable 

skew to one that was much more weighted to fixed interest rate debt. In June 2017, just weeks before the first 

interest rate move in years by the Bank of Canada, and based on a well-timed recommendation by our CFO, Philip 

Fitzgerald, we flipped the portfolio from 30% to over 70% fixed rate. While this increased the cost of  

our debt it allowed us to lock in what now appear to be very attractive interest rates, mostly for an eight-year 
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NVD Units Issued - 2017       

  
  

  Units   Amount 

Units at beginning of 2017 21,291,434  
 

  

Units retired - unitholder purchase of lot (38,386) 
 

($80,611) 

Units issued Private Placement 2,526,111  
 

$5,304,834  

Units tendered Private Placement (1,174,599)   ($2,466,658) 

NET Units - Private Placement 1,313,126  
 

$2,757,565  

Units after Aug 2017 Private Placement 22,604,560  6.2%   

New units issued via October 2017 DRP      160,344  0.8% $373,602  

New units issued for Main Steele 1,200,811  5.6% $2,726,000  

Total Units Outstanding 23,965,715  12.6%   

 

 

term. The subsequent three 0.25% interest rate moves made since then by the Bank of Canada, mean that our 

variable rate debt would already have moved to the same levels we have secured with the new fixed rate facilities. 

Our interest rate risk has been substantially reduced by this move, and we have locked in a sustainable cost base at 

exactly the right time.  

We spent considerable effort at the beginning of the year working with an investment banker for the first time. 

After several months working on a Private Placement, it became apparent that we needed to pursue a smaller 

financing target utilizing our own contacts.  This revised effort was led by management and supported by the 

board. The financing was marketed 

primarily to existing investors. In August we 

completed a $5.3 million Placement at 

$2.10 per unit of which roughly half was 

made available as a liquidity offer for 

unitholders looking to exit the Partnership. 

The table opposite provides a summary of 

the impact of this exercise as well as the 

two other activities involving unit issuance 

during the year. A total of 1,200,811 units 

were issued as part of the Main Steele 

building purchase acquisition at an average 

price of $2.27 per unit and the Distribution 

Reinvestment Program saw subscription of 

a further 160,344 units at $2.33 per unit. NAV per unit was estimated at $2.35 per unit at the beginning of the 

year, a value that was updated to $2.45 in our semiannual report to unitholders issued just after the completion of 

the Private Placement and now updated to $2.55 per unit with the issuance of this annual report.  

Though disappointing, the experience with the Investment Banker was an important learning exercise. The 

Partnership has re-evaluated its future plans with this learning in mind. Clearly, to attract the interest of a strong 

Investment Banker, the Partnership needs to be significantly larger and must seek a larger financing target. We 

have therefore adopted a five-year plan with the objective to double our Enterprise Value. The ability to utilize 

appropriate investment banker support in future financings is important for the Partnership to keep all liquidity 

options open. In the meantime, we know that our own Private Placement efforts, through DRP, small equity 

rounds, or “buildings for units” purchases will be rewarded if we continue to focus on maintaining and growing 

regular yield payments, increasing NAV per unit values through organic growth and accretive acquisitions and 

continue to improve the overall performance of the Partnership.  

In last year’s report I indicated that success would hinge our Private Placement, completion of the Edgewater 

renovations that improved ROI, margin improvement in our Hotel Division and leasing outcomes reducing portfolio 

vacancy to below 5%. We met most of these goals. The Private Placement was completed at a financing level lower 

than initially planned. The Edgewater renovation exceeded our most optimistic expectations. The High Country Inn 

delivered a breakout year, leading to stronger Hotel Division margin performance than expected. However, the 

Downtown Hotel, while achieving strong top line growth, did not deliver the expected margin performance and the 

Real Estate Division vacancy rate remained above 5% at year end.  Success in 2018 will involve completing the two 

unfinished tasks from 2017, which will see the Real Estate Division drop to below a 5% Portfolio vacancy rate, and 

the Downtown Hotel joining the other hotels in terms of margin performance. The underlying economy in the 

Yukon will assist significantly with the first item and moves already made to improve management at the 

Downtown should secure the second outcome. Beyond that, the year will focus on a successful marketing program 

for Phase II of our River’s Reach residential condominium development, completion of some additional accretive 

“building for units” purchases, securing appropriate financing for our development agenda and setting ourselves 

up for a strong income year in 2019 when we start to recognize proceeds from the sale of River’s Reach 

Condominiums and possibly other development activities.  
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“Net Asset Value was estimated at 

$2.55 on a fully diluted basis at the 

end of the year…” 

 

In the 2016 Annual Report I also stated there is no question in my mind that the best years for NVD are 

immediately in front of us. I believe 2017 was the commencement of those “best years”. The financial results were 

solid and we exit with a stronger balance sheet and a stronger cash position than we have ever enjoyed at year 

end. Interest rate risk has been reduced, debt to equity ratios are at all time lows for the Partnership and the 

Yukon economy is strong. Federal infrastructure dollars of significance have been announced in order to support 

the growth of mines, both large and small, that are working there way through the regulatory and assessment 

processes. The stars really do seem to be aligning. 

One of the major elements of our lease portfolio, the 20,400 ex-Super Valu space had been a concern for 

management for a number of years. While Loblaws continued to pay rent, they have kept the space “dark” for the 

better part of a decade. As a large portfolio component, its non-operating status was a negative for an otherwise 

well-situated mall in NVD’s portfolio. In December 2017 we arranged an early termination payout of this lease 

which allowed us to immediately re-lease the space to the “Innovation Hub”, a collection of societies in the Yukon 

with strong Federal and Territorial Government support that is focused on early stage support for technology 

businesses and light manufacturing businesses in the Yukon. The space will include the Cold Climate Innovation 

Centre, the Yukon Development Corporation as well as the coSpace and Yukonstruct operations. It is noteworthy 

that this project received reference in both the Federal and Territorial Government Budget documents these past 

weeks. The lease of these premises gives NVD impetus to catch up on deferred renovations of the Yukon Centre 

Mall that will allow us to make it once again one of the leading elements in our Real Estate portfolio.  

Net Asset Value, Distribution and Financing Activity 

The Board and Management estimated Net Asset Value 

(“NAV”) at $2.55 per unit on December 31, 2017, a 8.5% 

increase over the $2.35 estimated NAV per unit as at 

December 31, 2016. The primary driver in NAV growth 

was once again the improved performance of the Hotel 

Division during the year. The distribution was also increased from $750,000 or 3.6 cents per unit in 2016 to 

$2,500,000 or 11.1 cents per weighted average outstanding unit in 2017. While there are many factors to consider 

in declaring a distribution, the Partnership is focused on continuing to grow the yield available to investors in the 

coming years while continuing the twice-yearly frequency established in 2017.  

As CEO, I continue to be blessed with a talented and experienced management team that make significant efforts 

on behalf of our unitholders. There were a number of changes involving either board or management over the past 

year. In October Lori Simcox joined our board to replace Brian Titus who had retired after years of strong 

contributions to the board including his service on the Audit Committee. We thank Brian for his significant 

contributions to NVD, and welcome Lori’s enthusiasm and experience to our board. On the senior management 

team, David Brannigan joined as our Food and Beverage Director, bringing deep experience in the food and 

beverage area including event 

management. We now have all of the 

positions on the Hotel Division 

management team filled with 

seasoned professionals and their 

experience and skill are showing in the 

division’s operating and financial 

results.  

Could a double rainbow over Waterfront 

Station during 2017 be a harbinger of good 

things to come? 
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Summary 

Success is not accidental. In the case of NVD it is based on a combination of factors including a strong northern 

economy, a deep and dedicated management team, an experienced and supportive board and a strengthened 

balance sheet that supports strategic growth. As we exit 2017, we find ourselves enjoying strength in all of these 

areas and it is for that reason we are accepting the challenge of an aggressive five-year plan aimed at doubling the 

enterprise value of the Partnership while at the same time maintaining and then increasing yields and causing NAV 

per unit to growth through organic business development and accretive acquisitions. With the support of our 

bankers, such as long-time partner BDC, and our other financial partners we will be able to achieve these 

aggressive expansion goals. I would be remiss not to mention another strategic advantage that NVD enjoys – and 

that is our relationship with our First Nation Partners. Three leading Yukon First Nation entities -the Tr’ondëk 

Hwëch’in Trust, Ta’an Kwach’an Council and Carcross Tagish First Nation Daanaa Jili (Cache) Trust – continue to be 

three of the five largest unitholders in the Partnership. All have been involved not only as investors in the 

Partnership but also supporters in various ways including the provision of Mezzanine and Commercial Debt as well 

as in partnership with their Development Corporations in Joint Venture Partnerships. We understand and 

appreciate the strength that is added through these important and valued First Nation relationships. At the end of 

2017, NVD was 34% owned by First Nation investors and more than 58% of our ownership is Yukon based.  

We hope that you can join us for the Annual General Meeting on Tuesday May 29, 2017 in Calgary or the follow up 

investor update on Tuesday June 5, 2017 in Whitehorse. At that time, we will provide a further update on the 

affairs of the Partnership and report on our progress in 2018. We thank you for your continuing support of the 

Partnership. As we have reported before, we believe that one of our key strengths is the quality of our unitholder 

base. Their patience, guidance and encouragement are an important part of our success and I would be remiss not 

to comment on this once again as we provide you with this 2017 Annual Report to Unitholders.  

Sincerely, 
 

Northern Vision Development LP 
  

 
 
Richard S. Thompson 
Chief Executive Officer 
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Letter from the Chairman of the Board 

 
Dear Unitholders: 
Northern Vision Development experienced a solid year in 2017 with its engines firing on all cylinders. It 

demonstrated strong business performance which resulted in the highest recorded net income ever from 

operations, a successful private placement, distributions to unitholders higher than in 2016, a liquidity opportunity 

for those requiring it, and a strong balance sheet at year end.  

 

The company renovated the iconic property, The Edgewater Hotel, which helped lead the way to continued 

improvement in the accommodations sector; purchased signature properties such as the Main Steele building; and 

completed, after 10 years, the development and sale of its first large subdivision development at Titanium Way. 

 

Our CEO, Rich Thompson, and his able management team demonstrated typical entrepreneurial acumen and 

extensive business experience in leading the company forward. NVD has excellent staff who understand where we 

need to go and what it takes to get there.  

 

The company continues to be guided by an experienced Board of Directors with a wide range of skills and 

experience. In 2017, after the resignation of Brian Titus, we added Lori Simcox to the board ranks. We thank Brian 

for his years of service on the board and welcome Lori to the company. Lori is a Tr’ondëk Hwëch’in Citizen with 

extensive experience in aboriginal business ventures in BC and sits on the board of Royal Roads University. She 

joins Myron Tetreault, Hannes Kovac, Shirley Adamson, Ian McAuley, Rob Savin and myself on the board. 

 

To fully capture the experience and wisdom of board members a new Financing Committee of the board was 

created with Rob Savin as chair. Board members can now contribute advice to all key company activities: Audit 

(Tetreault), Hotels (McAuley), Development (Kovac), Governance (Savin) and now Financing (Savin). 

 

In November 2017 the management offices of NVD were consolidated into one location on the second floor of the 

Main Steele building on Main Street in Whitehorse. This move, taken primarily for reasons of cost and efficiency, 

has brought the various divisions of company management under one roof and has already begun to pay dividends 

in improving internal communications. 

 

The company from its inception has taken seriously its corporate responsibility to contribute significantly to the 

community in which it operates. It believes in the adage “a healthy community is a good place to do business”. 

Besides supporting community organizations with whom it does business NVD also provides financial support to 

worthy organizations, such as the Whitehorse Food Bank, that provide critical community services.  

 

The board and management of NVD are very optimistic about the future of the company. With the strong 

leadership provided by the CEO, Rich Thompson, and his team as well as the guidance provided by a strong and 

dedicated board of directors there is little doubt that opportunities will be seized, and the company will continue 

to achieve impressive results. 

 

Yours Sincerely, 
 

Northern Vision Limited Partnership 
 
 
 
 

Piers McDonald,  
Chairman 
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Report on Operations 
 

The following chart provides key operating and financial statistics for the past five years: 
 
 

Northern Vision Development Limited Partnership Operating Statistics 

 

    2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Income and Expenses ($) 
  

    

Hotel 
  

  
 

 

 
Revenue  11,518,087   12,731,544  13,057,357 13,509,860 15,041,403 

 
Margin Contribution       2,289,245       2,245,975  3,365,927 3,670,955 4,371,286 

 
 Margin percentage 19.9% 17.6% 25.8% 27.2% 29.1% 

Real Estate 
  

  
  

 
Revenue      1,624,695  2,234,947  2,526,038 2,658,863 3,542,187 

 
Margin Contribution     1,487,711  1,834,708  2,063,817 2,113,873 3,063,681 

 
 Margin percentage 91.6% 82.1% 81.7% 79.5% 86.5% 

Sales Activities 
  

  
 

 
Revenue      5,044,853       2,290,123  877,949 202,527 581,166 

 
Margin Contribution       1,332,306       558,059  257,636 106,516 199,072 

 
 Margin percentage 26.4% 24.4% 29.3% 52.6% 34.3% 

Expense 
  

  
  

 
Interest      1,002,509       1,478,241  1,471,982 1,268,756 1,276,789 

 
  Percentage of revenue 5.5% 8.5% 8.9% 7.6% 6.8% 

 
Depreciation       1,430,456        1,757,355  1,882,565 1,964,583 1,963,229 

 
  Percentage of revenue 7.8% 10.1% 11.4% 11.7% 10.4% 

 
Other Expenses      1,406,328       1,416,426  1,421,875 1,399,878 1,605,954 

 
  Percentage of revenue 7.7% 8.2% 8.6% 8.3% 8.5% 

Income from Operations 
            

1,401,635          61,259           813,075  1,407,834 2,907,302         

 
  Percentage of revenue 7.7% 0.4% 4.9% 8.4% 11.7% 

    
   

Balance Sheet and Related 
  

    

 
Total Assets ($ million)                 56.0                  57.1  56.5 57.6 65.0 

 
Total Debt ($ million)                  27.8                   29.1  31.9 31.8 32.2 

 
Debt as % of Assets 50.1% 51.0% 56.4% 55.3% 49.5% 

 

Weighted Average Cost of Debt 4.72% 4.32% 3.84% 3.63% 4.29% 

     

   

 2017 Results: Real Estate Revenues and Margins, and Income from Operations include a one-time extraordinary item of 
$700,000 related to the early termination of the Loblaws lease at Yukon Centre Mall. Hotel Division set record performance 
for revenues and margins, as did the Real Estate Division even before consideration of the one-time item. The pace of asset 
growth picked up as the Partnership returned its attention to asset investment and acquisition and equity fundraising 
activities. Weighted Average cost of debt increased due to a conscious shift by the Partnership to a fixed rate skew.  
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“Hotels Division revenue was up 

11.3% and margins improved 19.1% 

as once again records were set.…” 

I. Hotel Division 
 
The Hotel Division continues to provide more than 50% of total operating margins for NVD, achieving a record level 
of $4.4 million in Net Operating Income in 2017 on the strength of solid performance by all three Whitehorse-based 
hotel properties. 

 
The noteworthy gains were driven by the Coast High Country Inn reaching a new level of performance and the 

Edgewater Renovation delivering beyond expectations for that project. While NVD wants to ensure unitholders are 

updated properly on the performance of the Partnership in this area, the Partnership is also cognizant that this 

Annual Report is publicly available and therefore it is important not to divulge granular information on the 

performance of individual properties. Accordingly, this report will once again provide unitholders with a high-level 

understanding of what drove margin growth in the division.  

Division revenue was up 11.3% while margins improved by 19.1%. There are a number of factors that led to this 

outcome. Renovations at the Edgewater Hotel which were completed in April 2017, led to significant ADR 

improvement in that hotel. Challenges in the Food and Beverage component of the Coast High Country Inn were 

overcome and that part of the operation delived both 

revenue and margin improvement in 2017. The Best 

Western Gold Rush Inn continued to deliver solid 

returns, as it has done over much of the last decade. 

The only element of the Hotel Division portfolio that 

was a disappointment was the bottom line 

performance of the Downtown Hotel in Dawson. However, even with respect to that property there is room for 

optimism, as top line growth in both rooms and food and beverage was strong, and the underlying Dawson 

economy continues to improve as mining activities pick up. Changes in management approaches in the latter half 

of the year, should allow that property to begin to properly deliver on its promise in 2018.  

Early in 2017 the Coast High Country Inn played host to the international Coast Hotel convention and in April the 

grand reopening of the Edgewater Hotel attracted significant local market attention. The Edgewater features local 

First Nations art in all the rooms and common areas as well as historical photographs and artifacts from the mining 

industry. The Phase I renovations saw a complete renovation of the Guest Room experience and has been well 

received. The winter season has continued to see strength in the Northern Lights viewing market and the summer 

season was, as always, strong for the Yukon Territory. The growth in the Division’s performance is driven by 

increases in both Average Daily Rates (“ADRs”) and Occupancy as well as in market share. Still, the ADRs remain 

below the level experienced in places like Yellowknife, Northwest Territories, so the Partnership believes there is 

room for further improvement in this area.  

HOTEL DIVISION SUMMARY AND OUTLOOK: As noted in earlier reports, up until recently the Division has been 

reliant on the Best Western Gold Rush Inn to drive top and bottom line growth. However, with a breakout year for 

the Coast High Country Inn and the successful outcomes from the Edgewater Hotel renovations, the division’s 

results are now influenced by all of the Whitehorse properties. In 2018 NVD hopes to see the Downtown Hotel also 

make a meaningful contribution, although, as a 50% owned hotel in a seasonal market with only 59 rooms, it will 

be difficult for the contributions to become materially influential.  Still, with the diversification of reliance on 

performance away from a single property, the sustainability of the Division has been enhanced.  

The Partnership continues to evaluate a number of opportunities to exploit the strength of the deep professional 

hotel management team that has been established. Possible future moves include, but are not limited to, further 

acquisitions in the local market, acquisitions outside of Yukon, or both. The Partnership will also continue to look 

to potentially develop its well-located lands adjacent to the Best Western Gold Rush Inn as these are the most 

viable lands for a new hotel development in Whitehorse.  
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Hotel Division Margin continues to deliver over 50% of the 

overall operating income for the Partnership. 

The Main Steele Building at Main Street and Third Avenue has 

allowed NVD to consolidate its offices, while increasing its portfolio 

size 

Overall the growth of the Hotel Division has been a 

successful feature of the Partnership. As the graph 

opposite shows, even with the inclusion of a one-time 

$700,000 income gain in the Real Estate Division, the 

Hotel Division continues to provide the majority of 

margin contribution for the Partnership. In 2018 and 

beyond the main focus will be to build on success to 

date and expand hotel operations beyond the existing 

portfolio of properties.  

 

II. Real Estate Division   

 
The Real Estate Division travelled down the path to once 

again becoming a full contributor to the success of the 

Partnership. While the goal of achieving below 5% 

vacancy in the lease portfolio remained unattainable in 2017, the Partnership moved much closer to that target by 

achieving below 10% vacancy during the year. NVD also increased the size of its portfolio, ending the year with 

177,000 sf of leasable commercial premises and approximately 180,000 in overall rentable space. For the first time 

the Partnership utilized the issue of units in the purchase of a building when it acquired the Main Steele property 

on Main Street in Whitehorse late in the year. A deal currently in the final stages of negotiation is likely to add 

5,000 square feet to the portfolio in the first quarter of 2018. 

A much stronger economic backdrop has led to success in both leasing and property sales. During the year, the 

Partnership completed the decade long effort associated with its Titanium Way Business Park project by selling the 

remaining three lots that were in inventory when the year began. This project, which delivered an overall return of 

41.8% involved the sale of a total of 48 lots with the bulk of the sales occurring in the 2011 to 2013 period. NVD 

would certainly consider another similar project should the right circumstances present themselves. Other sales 

involved the sale of 2 River’s Reach residential condominiums and one commercial condominium sold at Titanium 

Way 170 in which the Partnership holds a two-thirds interest.  

From a leasing perspective, the Partnership entered into new leases that allowed it to eliminate vacancies 

completely in its Yukon Centre Mall and Titanium Way 166 buildings (the latter of which NVD has a net one-third 

interest) and to make further progress at both Waterfront Station and NVD Place. With both of its retail tenants 

requiring room for expansion within the Best 

Western Gold Rush Inn premises, NVD was 

motivated to purchase the Main Steele building 

where NVD was able to consolidate its head office 

and hotel offices by vacating hotel offices in the 

Gold Rush and making them available for the spa 

expansion.  

The expanded spa premises at the Best Western 

Gold Rush Inn not only increase the lease income 

associated with that property, but also improve an 

important hotel amenity, while the consolidation 

of all of NVD’s administrative and accounting 

personnel together is already reaping synergistic 

benefits. So the acquisition of the Main Steele 

property was important on a number of levels, but 

it also led to a small vacancy in the Gold Rush and 

an increase in vacancy at Waterfront Station, 

which was previously home to NVD’s head office. As the chart below indicates, it is expected that both of those 

vacancies will be filled during 2018.  
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NVD LP Lease Portfolio 

Property
%

Leaseable 

Square Footage 

(Total)

Vacant Square 

Footage (Total)

NVD 

Ownership

Leaseable Square 

Footage (Net)

Vacant Square 

Footage (Net)

2018 Vacancy 

Rate

Projected 

Vacancy

Vacancy 

Rate %

NVD Place  25.9% 45,854         10,399       100% 45,854            10,399       22.7% 7,919           17.3%

Yukon Centre Mall 22.8% 40,354         -              100% 40,354            -              0.0% -               0.0%

Waterfront Station* (1) 16.4% 29,006         4,100          100% 29,006            4,100         14.1% -               0.0%

MainSteele 10.1% 17,876         -              100% 17,876            -              0.0% -               0.0%

Spook Creek Station 5.7% 10,107         -              100% 10,107            -              0.0% -               0.0%

166 Titanium Way 4.3% 7,606            -              33% 2,485              -              0.0% -               0.0%

170 Titanium Way 0.7% 1,268            -              67% 845                  -              0.0% -               0.0%

Nugget Beach 3.3% 5,899            -              100% 5,899              -              0.0% -               0.0%

Pizza Hut/Marble Slab 2.5% 4,413            -              100% 4,413              -              0.0% -               0.0%

Gold Rush Inn 2.1% 3,689            919             100% 3,689              919             24.9% -               0.0%

Edgewater 3.6% 6,400            -              100% 6,400              -              0.0% -               0.0%

Carcross 0.8% 1,384            -              50% 692                  -              0.0% -               0.0%

Mighty Wash 1.2% 2,168            -              100% 2,168              -              0.0% -               0.0%

Trade Centre 1 0.5% 960               -              100% 960                  -              0.0% -               0.0%

Subtotal Commercial 100% 176,984       15,418       96% 170,748         15,418       9.0% 7,919           4.6%

River's Reach (2 units) 2,505            -              100% 2,505              -              0.0% -               0.0%

Total 179,489       15,418       173,253         15,418       8.9% 7,919           4.6%

Net Out Sales Inventory

Waterfront Station 1,686            171,567         13,732       8.0%

December 2017 NVD Property Vacancy Rate ( Adjusted for JVs) Projected YE 2018

 
The chart summarized current and projected future vacancy rates based on discussions that are now underway. For Waterfront Station, the 

noted vacancies include condo units that could be either leased or sold. If the bare condo inventory is netted out the overall vacancy rate 
would be reduced from 8.9% at yearend 2017 to 8.0%. (1) Waterfront Station reports only the condo units NVD owns. 

 
The single biggest challenge in the portfolio continues to be the vacancies represented by interior lease premises 

at NVD place. A concerted effort is underway to lease these premises now that demand is returning for 

commercial space in Whitehorse.  

Perhaps the biggest success in 2017 was the replacement of the Super Valu lease at Yukon Centre Mall with a new 

arrangement with the Yukon Innovation Hub. As long-term investors in NVD are aware, the 20,400 square feet 

(more than 10% of NVD’s portfolio) of ex-grocery space at Yukon Centre mall has been under lease to Loblaws but 

has been dark for the better part of the last decade. Twice Loblaws exercised renewal options for this space in 

order to keep it out of the hands of other grocers, most recently in April 2016. In 2017 a Save On Foods opened in 

Whitehorse, meaning that the need for Loblaws to protect itself against competitive entry was now moot. NVD has 

been actively seeking a replacement tenant and worked hard with the proponents of the Innovation Hub to ensure 

that this space met their needs. It is ideally located in downtown Whitehorse with excellent presence, high ceilings 

that lend themselves to supporting the manufacturing component of the Hub space and offers ample parking and 

ease of access on bus routes – being situated on Whitehorse’s main artery road.  

Teaming with coSpace, Yukonstruct, the Federal and Territorial governments and the Yukon College, NVD is part of 

an innovative initiative that could be instrumental in supporting future economic growth in the Yukon. NVD was 

able to negotiate a reasonable settlement with Loblaws regarding the early termination of lease payment and has 

entered into a long-term lease with the Innovation Hub. Looking forward, NVD is viewed as an important  partner 

in this initiative, which in turn will support needed diversification within the Yukon economy through early stage 

assistance of startups and other commercial activities. For NVD it also reduces the amount of retail mall space in 

the portfolio, a good outcome given the shift to online shopping, and provides the impetus for NVD to complete an 

overdue facelift of this property. The Federal and Territorial governments, along with the proponents of this 

initiative are doing important work for the Yukon economy by supporting the evolution of this type of 

infrastructure.  
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Architects rendering of the new residential and commercial buildings planned for the  
Partnership’s Waterfront Place Development Lands. Existing River’s Reach Phase I is at the top left of 

the picture, and existing Waterfront Station is just showing at the bottom right.  

 

Beyond the need to fill the remaining vacancies, the other risk in NVD’s commercial portfolio is exposure to 

restaurant facilities. Despite the Yukon climbing out of the recession during 2016, restaurants have continued to 

struggle. NVD provided some abatement relief or loans to its restaurants during the difficult times and while some 

have clawed their way back to performance status, not all have made it. In January 2017 the Wheelhouse 

Restaurant announced its plans to close and not renew its lease. Management is working on the best strategy to 

re-lease this space.   

Operating and Other Activities 

The Mighty Wash car wash continued to deliver expected results. The planning exercise with respect to the 

Partnership’s commercial land inventory in Whistle Bend may provide an opportunity for the expansion of this 

brand to a second location. Certainly, there is room for more advanced car wash operations in Whitehorse.  

In 2017 the Partnership took steps to offer third party Property Management services in order to expand its 

operating activities. One third party deal was signed late in the year as was a contract to manage construction 

activities on the Yukon Innovation Centre. While these new operating activities did not impact 2017 results in a 

material way, NVD expects these activities to begin to add to operating income levels in the coming years.  

The Partnership continued a focus on reducing its loan portfolio that was established through the provision of 

Vendor Take Back loans and tenant fit up loan facilities. This portfolio was managed to below $1 million in 2017 

and as a result has a more limited positive impact on operating income. On the flip side, it means these funds are 

available for deployment in the Partnerships core areas of focus.  

Development Activities 

Working with Abugov Kaspar, the Calgary-based architects who designed the River’s Reach Phase I project, the 

Partnership has advanced plans to begin River’s Reach Phase II, involving the building of 46 residential 

condominium units on its 

Waterfront Place development 

lands. The project features a 

single parkade with two 

buildings situated on top of it, 

and includes amenities such as 

roof top patios, underground car 

wash bay, conveniently located 

RV parking and storage facilities 

on lands acquired across the 

street, and larger format living 

spaces than provided in the 

original project. NVD is delighted 

to be continuing the 

transformation of this 

downtown community in 

Whitehorse which has been the 

Partnership’s signature project. 

The River’s Reach Phase II development project will be followed by plans to develop additional commercial space 

on the Waterfront Lands (pictured in white above) and finally by River’s Reach Phase III which will feature a 

multipurpose building with slightly smaller and more price accessibly residential condos on the upper floors and 

commercial services located at street level and possibly on the second floor. The multiuse building will be designed 

in the same style as the other River’s Reach buildings and is pictured in the graphic above at the bottom left.  

In addition, 2018 will see the Partnership begin the serious advancement of plans to develop the commercial lands 

it acquired in Whistle Bend, as the overall Whistle Bend project reaches attractive residential density levels which 

will properly support the development of these well situated commercial lands.  
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“In October, a Distribution 

Reinvestment Plan saw 23.3% of 

distributions reinvested.…” 

Financing Activities 

From September 2012 until May 2016 the Partnership was not engaged in raising funds. As previously reported, 

NVD utilized the period of time in which the Yukon was in economic recession to strengthen its balance sheet via 

organic activities and to tighten up the operating performance of its divisions. With stronger economic activity, 

NVD returned in 2016 to a growth strategy once more. In 2015 the Partnership began redemption of outstanding 

convertible debt using cash flow, and in May 2016 NVD retired the remaining $3.0 million in convertible debt 

through the facilitation of an adhoc offer to unitholders using proceeds from redeemed debt ($2.5 million) and 

conversion of debt to equity at $1.90 per unit ($0.5 million).  

Over the past year the Partnership stepped up the pace of return to financing activities through a variety of 

initiatives. After engaging an investment banker and achieving limited success in a $15 million private placement 

effort, the Partnership reduced the targeted raise and handled the activities directly. This resulted in a Private 

Placement raising $5.3 million and closing in August 2017 at a price of $2.10 per unit.  A total of 2,526,111 units 

were issued and 1,212,985 units were retired as part of 

this process. The retired units allowed all those seeking 

liquidity to exit the partnership at their desired levels. 

The net result was an increase in units of 1,313125 to 

22,604,560 units outstanding for gross proceeds of 

$2,757,565. This represented a 6.2% increase in the 

number of outstanding units of the Partnership.  

In October two additional activities occurred which brought in equity and increased the size of the Partnership. In 

response to investor requests, NVD adopted a Distribution Reinvestment Program (“DRP”) allowing unitholders to 

elect to reinvest part or all of their distributions into units of the partnership at a 5% discount to the published NAV 

per unit. Elections received for this initial DRP totaled 23.3% of distributions and were reinvested at $2.33 per unit 

resulting in the issuance of 160,344 units. In the same month, the Partnership closed on its first “buildings for 

units” purchase, which was the Main Steele acquisition described earlier in this report. Originally negotiated with 

the published NAV per unit was $2.35, this acquisition involved the issuance of 888,889 units at $2.25 per unit for 

proceeds of $2 million. During the closing of the transaction the seller elected to accept additional units of the 

Partnership, but by that time (October 2017) the published NAV per unit had increased to $2.45 per unit. An 

additional 311.922 units at the DRP price of $2.33 per unit were issued for further proceeds of $726,000 as part of 

this closing.  

As a result of the three financing activities during the year, a total of 2,674,281 (net) units were issued bringing the 

year end closing unit balance to 23,965,715 which was a 12.6% increase in the number of units over the year.  

Economic Commentary  

The Yukon Bureau of Statistics reported GDP decreased 7.8% in 2015 and increased 8.0% in 2016, essentially 

meaning no net gain over those two years. The graph below shows the pattern of GDP growth in Yukon based on 

the latest revisions. It highlights the signficant issues during the 2013 to 2105 period were actually worse than 

previously reported. In its October 2017 update, the Yukon 

Territorial Government released estimates for a GDP growth of 

1.2% for 2017 and an estimated 5.2% GDP growth in 2018. In their 

recent budget release at the beginning of March, the forecast was 

revised downward to 4.4% for the current year. As readers of our 

annual reports know, obtaining accurate forecasts for GDP 

performance in the Yukon is difficult, even after the fact, but NVD 

generally believes that the government has the estimates 

directionally correct for 2017 and 2018 based on our own 

experience. The Partnership has witnessed an improvement in the 

commercial sales and leasing market over the past two years and 

the impact of that is reflected in NVDs financial results.  
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“Recently Victoria Gold announced 

over $500 million in financial support 

for the Eagle Gold project.…” 

NVD expects a solid future for our Hotel Division based on the steady improvements made to both product and 

service over the past decade, culminating with the Edgewater renovation project. The Partnership will continue to 

invest in all of the properties and keep an eye out for additional opportunities to grow the division. From an 

economic outlook perspective the division’s performance is impacted by a lot of underlying factors. Visitation is 

assisted by a relatively lower Canadian currency as compared to the US dollar and conditions remain favourable in 

this regard. It is not anticipated that we will continue to enjoy below 80 cent conversion levels forever, but neither 

does management anticipate that the Canadian dollar will rise in value so rapidly as to significantly impair this 

advantage in the short to medium term. The Territorial Government is undertaking a long term strategic review of 

its Tourism product and NVD CEO Rich Thompson is co-chair of the steering committee alongside the Deputy 

Minister of Tourism. The partnership is hopeful that this strategic review, coupled with the ongoing commitment 

of governments to support increased spending on destination marketing efforts will continue to bode well for the 

Yukon’s tourism industry.  

While the tourism economy can positively or negatively impact the Partnership’s Hotel Division, the mining 

industry is the main economic driver that impacts all of NVD’s operating divisions. The news here is good. The 

recent budget document released by the Yukon Government was optimistic about the number of new projects 

that are poised to contribute to Yukon economic growth in the short and medium term.  

Exploration spending in the mining sector 

rebounded in 2017 after two years of decline with 

recent estimates of spending last year in the 

neighbourhood or $200 million, the highest level 

since 2012 and significantly up from levels below 

$100 million in 2015 and 2016. In 2018 the 

expenditures are expected to continue at about this level, projected at $170 million by the Yukon Territorial 

Government. And while exploration spending has a positive impact on the underlying economy, it is cyclical. The 

more promising news comes from the spending on mine development and production which is longer term in 

nature. While mine development expenditures have averaged less than $20 million per annum in the 2014 to 2016 

period, 2017 spending was up sharply to approximately $70 million as Victoria Gold’s Eagle Gold project got 

underway. Total development spending on the Eagle Gold project is expected to reach $300 million with the 

majority occurring in 2018 and the number of onsite employees peaking at approximately 300, and at the writing 

of this Annual Report, Victoria Gold announced a comprehensive $500 million financing package had been 

arranged to support continuation of construction activities at its Eagle Gold Project. NVD is proud to supply Yukon 

office premises to Victoria Gold in its Waterfront Station building, and this year added GoldCorp as a tenant in its 

Titanium Way 166 commercial project owned in Joint Venture with Selkirk Development Corp.  

While GoldCorp’s Coffee Gold project is still in the assessment phase, it is anticipated that this mine will also 

emerge as a development project with costs expected in the $420 million range for mine development. Most of 

this spending will likely occur in the 2020 and 2021 period, but it is encouraging to have these mining projects 

advancing in sequence in a manner likely to boost GDP growth for a good number of years to come. As these 

mines move through development stage they will then add to growth in mineral production rates in future years. 

With respect to production, the news has also been encouraging. Certainly, the Minto mine contributed to strong 

GDP numbers in 2016 as referenced above. Production numbers lagged behind the hoped-for rates in 2017 but 

this is expected to move forward again in 2018 and the mine is now expected to produce through 2021. Placer gold 

mining continues to have a significant impact. Averaging $70 million in output for the 2012 to 2015 period, the 

output rose to above $90 million in 2016 and is estimated to have reached that level again in 2017. In all, mineral 

production for 2017 was estimated to be $290 million. 

In its budget document the Territorial Government has estimated that production will reach above $300 million in 

2018, rising rapidly to above $600 million by 2020 and staying above the $500 million in the years that follow. In 

support of this, the Federal and Territorial Governments have announced a $360 million infrastructure 

commitment to improve road access to the mines. This infrastructure spending alone would materially impact the 

Yukon’s economic performance. 
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“Solid results, a strong underlying 

economy and well identified 

opportunities should lead to both 

yield and NAV per unit growth in 

the years ahead .…” 

As set out here, news on the economic front is generally good in the Yukon across the board. However, the 

Partnership does watch other indicators which can have a negative impact on results. The general improvement of 

economic conditions in most parts of Canada have led the Bank of Canada to increase interest rates which in turn 

increase expenses for the Partnership. Management took steps to mitigate this risk in 2017 by fixing the rates on a 

significant portion of its debt portfolio. And while there has been steady improvement in the accommodations 

industry and new strength in commercial leasing as mining picks up steam, some participants in the food and 

beverage industry continue to struggle. While most of our food and beverage operations are seeing at least some 

bottom line improvement, and while many of our restaurant tenants are witnessing better results as well, this is an 

area that NVD must carefully watch. The Partnership will be reluctant to increase exposure to food and beverage 

operations as tenants until this sector sees significant improvement.  

Outlook 

With a stronger balance sheet, room for additional leverage, available equity support and strong signals for an 

improving economy, the Partnership is moving forward once again with development projects. NVD has embarked 

on an ambitious plan to double the size of the enterprise 

over the next five years and will do so through growth in 

all areas of the Partnership.   

2018 will be a transition year, as the Partnership will be 

investing significantly into development projects which will 

not begin to produce financial results until 2019. However, 

the timing is right to embark on the first of a series of 

major development projects that will allow the Partnership 

to experience continuous organic growth, and some lumpy 

one-time income from condominium sales over the next five-year period. The projects will provide impetus for 

further financing activities and will ensure that funds raised through the DRP program can be put to good use. 

Management will be working with the Partnership’s primary lenders to develop a more comprehensive and 

integrated mortgage portfolio program so that it can move forward efficiently on major projects and acquisitions.  

Finally, it will be important to ensure that the Partnership can sustain aggressive growth while meeting its yield 

objectives. This requires that we invest in our management team and lay down disciplined succession plans. Long 

term succession planning will begin in earnest in 2018 with an eye to having an even stronger management team 

in place when the enterprise value is doubled, allowing the Partnership to address even more exciting possibilities. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the Financial Results  

The financial statements of Northern Vision Development Limited Partnership, which are audited by Deloitte LLP 

as at and for the period ended December 31, 2017, are included with this annual report. This summary should be 

read in conjunction with the financial statements and related notes thereto.  

Statements Prepared Under ASPE 

The Partnership’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 continue to utilize the Accounting 

Standards for Private Enterprise (“ASPE”) which was adopted for the first time by the Partnership in 2011. The 

Partnership plans to move to the IFRS framework for reporting in 2018. 

Financing Activities 

Long Term Debt:  At December 31, 2017 long term debt was $32,230,045 a $394,342 (1.2%) increase during the 

year (2016 - $31,835,703).  This was caused primarily by the increase in Hotel Division debt associated with the 

Edgewater Renovations, offset by normal principal retirement associated with the Partnership’s regular mortgage 

repayments.  

NVD made regular principal payments of $1,794,260 in 2017 (2016 - $1,722,790). It concluded the drawdown of a 

previously arranged debt facility with BDC in support of the renovations at the Edgewater Hotel totaling $1.75 

million during the period and established a new debt facility of $250,000 with Scotiabank to support tenant fit up 

activities at Waterfront Station. These items, adjusted by small balances relating to capitalized interest and 

deferred financing fees, explain the 1.2% increase in total long-term debt balances for the year.  

Weighted Average Cost of Debt: At December 31, 2017, the weighted average cost of long term debt increased to 

4.29% (December 31, 2016 - 3.63%). The increase in was largely driven by the Partnership’s decision to move from 

a variable rate to a fixed rate skew in June 2017, in advance of expected interest rate moves by the Bank of 

Canada. As the Bank of Canada has made three subsequent moves to increase the bank rate, by 0.25% on each 

occasion, and as NVD’s banks have followed that with interest rate increases of their own, the Partnership’s 

variable interest rates have also increased, becoming another factor in pushing the weighted average cost of debt 

upwards. NVD has secured long term fixed rates (8-year term) that are in step with what it would be paying on 

variable rate debt had it not made this move in timely fashion.  

NVDLP’s debt includes 79% fixed rate and 21% variable rate loans at December 31, 2017 (December 31, 2016 - 32% 

fixed and 68% variable). Fixed rate debt had an average cost of 4.20% (December 31, 2016    - 3.33%). Variable rate 

debt was at 4.62% as at December 31, 2017 (December 31, 2016 - 3.75%). 

Total debt to equity ratio was 1.04:1 (December 31, 2016 - 1.30:1). The significant decrease in this ratio is the 

result of an increase in unitholder equity through the activities set out below, while long term debt remained 

relatively constant year over year as outlined above.   

Currently, the Partnership is exposed to interest rate risk with each 1% rise in its variable interest rates responsible 

for an annual increase of $64,995 (December 31, 2016 - $217,669) in interest expense.  

Equity Fundraising: The Partnership completed a Private Placement in August 2017, issuing 2,526,111 units at 

$2.10 per unit for gross proceeds of $5,304,834. A total of 1,174,599 units were taken up by existing unitholders 

wishing to exit the Partnership, resulting in a net placement of 1,313,126 units at $2.10 per unit for proceeds of 

$2,757,565. 

In October 2017 the Partnership closed a building purchase (“Main Steele”) for a total of $3.8 million involving cash 

and units. A total of 888,889 units were issued at $2.25 per unit and a further 311,922 units were issued at $2.33 

per unit as part of this transaction for gross proceeds of 2.726 million meaning that a total of 1,200,811 units were 

issued as part of the Main Steele purchase. In October 2017 a Distribution Reinvestment Program (“DRP) was 
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introduced by NVD. Nine Unitholders elected to reinvest, resulting in the issuance of 160,344 units as part of the 

DRP, representing 23.3% of the total distributions or a total of $373,198.  

Retention Awards  

At year end, retention awards with a value of approximately $84,396 were granted to directors who elected to 

take the units in lieu of cash. (December 31, 2016 - 54,375 and $122,343). During the year 5,003 units were 

redeemed for consideration of $12,258 (2016 – 27,782 and $67,830).  

Senior employees, by the same program, are entitled to receive units over a three-year vesting period. During the 

year 17,858 units were redeemed for $66,079(2016 – 40,833 and $91,874). An expense of $105,962 was recorded 

for units that vested in the year (2016 - $53,212).  At year end, there were 41,264 units due to employees with an 

estimated value of $101,096 (December 31, 2016 – 8,073 and $18,163). A liability of $302,222 (2016 - $140,506) 

has been accrued for vested retention awards not redeemed. 

Working Capital 

Accounts Receivable increased to $1,802,700 from $727,713 at the end of 2016. The increase reflects a higher level 

of activity leading up to year end in the Partnership’s Hotel Division, with the Edgewater Hotel open and operating 

in the last quarter of 2017 contrasted to being closed in 2016 but was mostly the result of the one-time lease 

termination payment from Loblaws which increased receivables on a one-time basis by $735,000 at year end. This 

payment was received in January 2018. 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities totaled $1,588,281 at year end (2016 - $992,027). The increase related to 

a variety of factors including holdbacks on construction work underway, increased payables associated with 

development activities and higher activity levels in the last quarter in the Partnership’s Hotel Division.  

Loans Receivable decreased by $391,022 during 2017, following a reduction of $608,555 in 2016.  The balance 

stood at $937,762 at year end (December 31, 2016 - $1,329,784). The Partnership’s willingness to allow for early 

repayment has meant this portfolio which was over $3,000,000 in 2013 is being slowly reduced consciously by the 

Partnership. As NVD moves to a more aggressive development stance involving an increased pace of fit up work, 

along with the sale of non-strategic properties, the size of this loan portfolio may again be increased going 

forward. 

Development Activities 

The remaining three lots in the Titanium Way Business Park were sold in 2017 reducing Properties held for sale to 

$nil at December 31, 2017 (December 31, 2016 - $375,206). Property under development balances increased to 

$4.6 million at December 2017 (2016 - $3.8 million) driven by the acquisition of Lot 10 at Waterfront Place and 

investments to date in Phase II development activities at that property and the capitalization of carrying costs 

associated with the Whistle Bend property.  The balances were also increased by capitalized property taxes on 

development properties of $34,457 and capitalized interest on the Whistle Bend lot of $79,366 during 2017 (2016 -

$37,000 and $30,000). 

Capital Expenditures on Property and Equipment 

The partnership spent $7.62 million on property and improvements in the year (2016 - $2.76 million).  A total of 

$882,000 was spent on regular hotel improvements (2016 - $615,000) and a further $1.77 million was incurred on 

the Edgewater renovation (2016 – $701,000).  The Partnership spent $3.8 million in cash and units to acquire the 

Main Steele building on Main Street in Whitehorse ($902,000 in 2016 to acquire a commercial condominium in 

Waterfront Station). Of the balance, $285,531 was incurred at Waterfront Station (2016 - $301,000) $302,987 on 

other properties (2016 - $143,000) and the balance of $70,066 on corporate assets (2016 - $74,000).  



 
 

NVDLP Annual Report to Unitholders  
As at and for the year ended December 31, 2017 

 

 PAGE 20 

Operating Activities 

Revenues: Revenues increased by 12.6% to $18.9 million in 2017 (2016 – 16.8 million). This increase was driven by 

improvements in Hotel and Rental Division revenues as well as increases in sales of properties held for sale.  

Hotel revenues were up 11.3% to $15.04 million in 2017 (2016 $13.51 million). Rental Revenues were up 6.9%, 

before consideration of a onetime lease termination payment, to $2.84 million (2016 - $2.66 million). 

The $581,166 in revenues from Properties Held for Sale (2016 - $202,527) represented the sale of three Titanium 

Way Business Park lots, the Partnership’s share in the sale of one commercial condo at Titanium Way 170, and the 

sale of two residential condos in River’s Reach (2016 - one Titanium Way Business Park lot, one commercial unit in a 

Joint Venture and one residential condo in River’s Reach).  During 2016 $361,152 in revenues (2016 - $332,685) 

were recorded from the Mighty Wash car wash. 

Gross Profit and Direct Expenses: Direct Expenses were up by 10.3% to $11.85 million (2016 - $10.75 million). 

Expenses in the Hotel Division were up 8.4% to $10.67 million as would be expected given the increase in division 

revenues which increased at a faster pace. Cost of properties held for sale were up due to an increase in sales 

activity.  Despite an increase in Rental Division revenues, Rental costs decreased by 12.2% as vacancies continued to 

be absorbed during the year. Although costs associated with Mighty Wash were down year over year, other costs 

increased to $321,923 (2016 – 269,996) as the Partnership made an investment in it property management services.  

With Hotel and Rental Division revenues increasing at a faster pace than costs, Gross Profit improved 16.8% to 

$7.05 million which was 37.3% of revenue (2016 - $6.04 million and 36.0%). 

Expenses: Amortization expense decreased 0.1% to $1.963 million in 2017 (2016 - $1.964 million). Acquisition and 

development activity associated with the Main Steele building, the Edgewater Renovation and tenant fit up 

activities occurred at a pace that offset the natural declining capital balances in the portfolio that would otherwise 

lead to a decline in depreciation. As the full year impact of these projects and the activity level increases on the 

development side of the business, it is expected these expenses will once again increase.   

Interest expense increased by 0.6% to $1.28 million (2016 - $1.27 million). In 2016 the presence of the relatively 

higher interest rate convertible debentures that were in place for the first part of the year pushed the expenses 

higher. While this led to a favourable variance in 2017, that was offset in the latter part of the year by a move from 

variable to higher cost fixed rate debt for a significant portion of the portfolio and the increase in the interest rates 

associated with the remaining variable rate debt as the Bank of Canada increased the central rates.  

Wages expense represents staff not directly working in operational areas. The $1,063,106 expense incurred in 

2017 (2016 - $893,164) increased by 19.0% from the previous year for a number of reasons: (i) the wages for the  

CEO and the CFO were brought back completely to levels previously earned prior to the recessionary period; (ii) 

additional bonuses were earned in line with improved performance of the Partnership; (iii) general and normal 

course increases in salaries for middle management; and (iv) the depth of the management team was increased to 

support growth in Property Management services. Full deployment of the Retention Award Program also 

contributed to the increases. Bonuses of $81,833 associated with certain pre-defined performance objectives 

(2016 - $62,500 in management bonuses) were paid in the year.  

Governance costs increased 44.2% or $61,083 to $199,245 for the year (2016 - $138,162) $49,701 of this was due 

to the performance-based bonuses (2016 nil). The balance arose from an increase in salaries of $22,560 to 

$136,072 (2016-$113,511) mitigated with other expense reductions of $11,074.    

The Partnership’s office expenses decreased by 16.7% to $140,717 (2016 - $169,005). During the recessionary 

period NVD rented certain workshop and storage space from buildings in which it was a joint venture partner. With 

the return to a more robust leasing market, these spaces were filled with third party tenants and NVD was forced 

to consolidate these activities. Consequently, savings were generated in office occupancy costs.  
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Marketing expenses were up by 38.3% to $58,807 in 2017 (2016 - $42,526). As leasing activities increased and the 

Partnership moved to begin work on major developments the need for enhanced sponsorship and general 

advertising led to the increased expenditure levels.  

Bad debt expenses increased by 37.5% in 2017 to $55,916 from $40,680 in 2016. In both years the provisions were 

made against revenues associated with rents owed by a restaurant tenant. In 2018 the restaurant tenant 

announced plans to close. Given the Partnership’s security position and ability to work with the tenant, NVD 

believes it is fully covered on its bad debt provisions and expects some possible recovery of the amounts provided 

for in 2018 and beyond.  

Professional fees decreased 35.4% to $54,953 in 2017 (2016 - $85,081) due to a more efficient audit process and 

less demand for legal counsel in 2017 compared to 2016. 

Travel costs are primarily associated with the regular charges to fly the CEO from Calgary to Whitehorse to 

maintain a strong presence in the local market. The increase of 13.8% to $33,210 (2016 – 29,271) reflected an 

increase of the frequency of trips in 2017 as activity levels picked up.  

Due to all the factors noted above, expenses increased by 4.6% to $4.85 million (2016 - $4.63 million).  

Income from Operations:  Income from operations improved by $799,468 or 56.8% to $2.21 million (2016 - $1.41 

million). This is the result of all the variances described in the foregoing analysis.  

Sales Activities and Interest Income and Extraordinary Item 

Interest Income: The Partnership has entered loans involving Vendor Take Back financing on Titanium Way lot 

sales, tenant fit up (particularly for the Waterfront Station and NVD Place projects) and with partners with whom 

NVD operates Joint Ventures. These loans are at interest rates that are higher than the Partnership’s weighted 

average borrowing costs. As previously noted, the Partnership is actively reducing this loan portfolio and therefore 

income from this source declined to $72,806 in the period (2016 - $99,597). The active reduction of the portfolio is 

likely to level out or even increase in 2018 as once again the ability to provide loan financing may be used from 

time to time to assist in closing transactions.  

Gains on sales improved to $157,782 in 2017 (2016 - $104,169). In both years these gains related to sales of 

residential and/or commercial condominiums. In 2017 the sales involved two River’s Reach residential 

condominiums and a joint venture interest in one commercial condominium in Titanium Way 170 (2016 – one 

River’s Reach residential condo, one joint venture interest in one commercial condominium in Titanium Way 170, 

and one commercial condominium in Waterfront Station). 

Extraordinary item: In 2017 the Partnership negotiated an early lease termination relating to a lease for 20,400 

square feet in Yukon Centre Mall with over three years remaining in the lease. This termination payment led to the 

recognition of $700.000 in income in 2017 (2016 - $nil). 

2017 Net Income improved by 94.7% to $3.14 million (2016 - $1.61 million).  This resulted from the combination of 

all of the foregoing explanations.  

Liquidity 

The Partnership provided unitholders the opportunity for liquidity by taking advantage of demand to purchase 

units in the August 2017 Private Placement that exceeded the Partnership’s need for new equity. A total of nine 

unitholders elected to fully exit the partnership and a further three elected to partially exit.  Eleven existing 

unitholders and four new unitholders subscribed to the Private Placement. As a result, there are now a total of 83 

unitholders in the Partnership represented by 74 unique unitholders, with some unitholders holding units in a 

number of entities that they control. As a result of the Private Placement, the associated liquidity opportunity, the 

units issued in the Main Steele acquisition, and the units issued in the DRP, the partnership ended the year with 

23,965,715 units outstanding (2016 – 21,291,434) which is a 12.6% increase in the number of units.  
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Review of the Partnership Objectives 

In the 2016 Annual report to unitholders, management set out certain objectives for the year. Following is a list 

of those objectives along with commentary on the Partnership’s progress: 

Objective: Exceed AFFO of $2.0 million and Net Income of $2.25 million. Result: Both objectives were exceeded 

with Net Income of $3.14 million ($2.44 million before the extraordinary item) and AFFO of $2.46 million.  

Objective: Complete a Private Placement financing that raises at least $15 million and complete an Issuer Bid that 

provides at least $5 million in liquidity for existing unitholders. Result: Partially achieved. Board and management 

terminated an engagement with an Investment Banker in May 2017 and reset the objectives to raise $5.0 million 

and make $2.5 million of that amount available for liquidity. These objectives were met with $5.30 million raised 

and $2.55 million used to fully satisfy demands for liquidity.  

Objective: Commence pre-sales and early stage development of the River’s Reach Phase II project. Result: 

Achieved but slightly delayed. Plans for the project have been completed and reservations are in place but early 

stage development is only commencing at the writing of this annual report.  

Objective: Exceed $4.0 million in operating profit margin in the Hotel Division. Result: Exceeded. Hotel Division 

operating profit margin achieved record levels of $4.37 million.  

Objective: Successfully launch the renovated Edgewater Hotel and achieve in excess of $400,000 in operating 

profit margin from this property in 2017. Result: Exceeded. The renovations were completed on time in April 2017 

and in line with budget expectations. Net operating profit for the property in 2017 was $517,000. 

Objective: Achieve Gains from Sales of in excess of $300,000. Result: Exceeded. Gains from sales as measured by 

net income on sales of properties held for sale and gains on sales of income producing property totaled $357,000 

for the year.  

The following objectives have been established for 2018 by the Partnership: 

Exceed AFFO of $2.25 million and Net Income of $2.75 million. 

Successfully launch the River’s Reach residential condominium project. 

Acquire up to $10 million in buildings through use of units as a component of the transaction. 

Exceed $4.7 million in operating profit margin in the Hotel Division.  

Achieve $250,000 in operating profit from the Downtown Hotel in Dawson (100%) 

Reduce commercial lease portfolio vacancy to 4% or less by year end.   

Maintain or improve per unit distributions. 

Meet or exceed a year end NAV per unit value of $2.70.  
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING 

The accompanying financial statements of the Northern Vision Development Limited Partnership and all the 

information in this annual report are the responsibility of management and have been approved by the Board of 

Directors.  

These financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian accounting 

standards for private enterprises.  Financial statements are not precise since they include certain amounts based 

on estimates and judgments.  When alternative accounting methods exist, management has chosen those it deems 

most appropriate in the circumstances, in order to ensure that the financial statements are presented fairly, in all 

material respects.   

The Partnership maintains systems of internal accounting and administrative controls of quality that are consistent 

with reasonable cost.  Such systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial information is 

relevant, reliable and accurate and the Partnership's assets are appropriately accounted for and adequately 

safeguarded. 

The Partnership's management is responsible for ensuring that the Partnership fulfills its responsibilities for 

financial reporting and is ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving the financial statements. 

The Board of Directors review the Partnership's financial statements and recommend their approval.  The Board of 

Directors meet periodically with management, as well as the external accountants, to discuss internal controls over 

the financial reporting issues, to satisfy themselves that each party is properly discharging their responsibilities, 

and to review the annual report, the financial statements and the external accountants' report.  The Board of 

Directors takes this information into consideration when approving the financial statements for issuance to the 

partners.  The Board of Directors also consider the engagement of the external accountants. 

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte LLP in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 

auditing standards on behalf of the partnership.  Deloitte LLP has full access to the Board of Directors. 
 
March 16, 2018 
 
 
On behalf of the Board: 

 

 
Myron Tetreault, Audit Committee Chair and Director 
 
  

 
 
 
 

 
Piers McDonald, Chairman of the Board of Directors 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Partners of Northern Vision Development Limited Partnership 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Northern Vision Development Limited 
Partnership, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2016, and the consolidated 
statements of income, partners’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Northern Vision Development Limited Partnership as at December 31, 2017, and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises. 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
March 16, 2018 
Langley, British Columbia 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 

 

As at December 31,     2017   2016 

       
 

ASSETS  
     

 

Cash  
  

 $             2,323,092  
 

 $         988,404  
 

 
Accounts receivable 

 
1,802,700  

 
            727,713  

 

 
Inventories  

 
234,781  

 
            175,218  

 

 
Loans receivable  

 
938,762  

 
         1,329,784  

 

 
Property and equipment   

 
54,425,035  

 
      49,552,185  

 

 
Property under development  

 
               4,626,090  

 
         3,815,020  

 

 
Properties held for sale  

 
                             -    

 
            375,206  

 

 
Other  

  

                 629,526  
 

            591,831  
 

    

 $          64,979,986  
 

 $   57,555,361   
LIABILITIES & PARTNERS' EQUITY 

    

 

Accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities  

 
  $            1,588,281 

 
$         992,027   

 
Customer deposits  

 
          191,244  

 
           168,649  

 

 
Long term debt   

 
             32,230,045  

 
     31,835,703  

 

    

          34,009,570  
 

    32,996,379  
 

Partners' equity  30,970,416                24,558,982             

    

 $         64,979,986  
 

$    57,555,361   

 

Approved on behalf of the Board 

  
 

Myron Tetreault, Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee 
 

 
 

 

Piers McDonald, Chairman of the Board of Directors 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes form and integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
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Consolidated Statement of Income 

 

For the year ended December 31, 2017  2016 

 
Revenues  

    

 
Hotels  

 
 $   15,041,403  

 
 $   13,509,860  

 
Rentals (Note 11) 

 
         2,842,187  

 
         2,658,863  

 
Sale of properties held for sale 

 
581,166  

 
            202,527  

 
Other 

 
444,157  

 
            419,703  

   
       18,905,913  

 
       16,790,953  

Direct expenses  
    

 
Hotels  

 
         10,670,117  

 
         9,838,905  

 
Rentals 

 
               478,506  

 
            544,990  

 Cost of properties held for sale  382,094  96,011 

 
Other 

 
321,923 

 
            269,996  

   
       11,852,640  

 
       10,749,092  

Gross profit  
 

         7,053,273  
 

              5,589,497  

Expenses  
    

 
Amortization  

 
         1,963,229  

 
         1,964,583  

 
Interest (Note 10) 

 
         1,276,789  

 
         1,268,756  

 
Wages  

 
            1,063,106  

 
            893,164  

 
Governance (Note 11) 

 
            199,245  

 
            138,162  

 
Office 

 
            140,717  

 
            170,994  

 Marketing                  58,807                  42,526  

 
Bad debts 

 
               55,916  

 
               40,680  

 
Professional fees  

 
               54,953  

 
               85,081  

 
Travel  

 
               33,210  

 
               29,271  

   
         4,845,972  

 
         4,633,217  

Income from operations  
 

         2,207,302  
 

                 1,407,834  

Other income  
     Lease termination payment  700,000  - 

 
Gain on sale of property and equipment              157,782  

 
                      104,169  

 Interest income (Note 8)                72,806  99,597 

Net income 
 

 $      3,137,889  
 

 $              1,611,600  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes form and integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
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Consolidated Statement of Partners' Equity 

 
 

For the year ended December 31, 2017  2016 

 
Partners' equity, beginning of year 

 
$  24,558,982 

  
$   23,189,063 

Units issued 8,404,032  508,319 

Units redeemed (2,547,112)  - 

Issuance costs (83,375)  - 

Net income for the year 3,137,889  1,611,600 

Partners’ Equity, before distributions 33,470,416    25,308,982 

Distribution to unitholders (2,500,000)  (750,000) 

Partners' equity, end of year $    30,970,416  $   24,588,982 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The accompanying notes form and integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
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 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
 

For the year ended December 31, 2017  2016 

 

Cash flows from operating activities                                

 Net income for the year      $    3,137,889     $            1,611,600  

 
Add back  

   
  

Amortization of financing fees                   37,223                        32,342  

  
Amortization of other assets                   14,954                        14,376  

  
Amortization of property and equipment              1,948,275                  1,959,206  

  
Non-cash revenues                 (23,167)                     (76,875) 

  Allowance for bad debts  55,916 50,000 

  
Retention awards expensed                178,841                     107,955  

  
Gain on sale of property and equipment              (157,782)                  (104,169) 

  
Cost of properties sold             382,094                        96,011  

    
          5,574,243                 3,631,446  

 
Changes in non-cash working capital balances  

  
  

Accounts payable and accrued labilities               595,984                    (329,482) 

  
Accounts receivable         (1,074,987)                    190,786  

  
Other assets          (37,695)                         52,247  

  
Inventories              (59,563)                     (18,671) 

  
Customer deposits                 22,595                        12,202  

    
          5,020,577                  3,538,528  

Cash flows from investing activities  
  

 
Loans receivable  

               
448,332                     558,555  

 
Proceeds on sale of property               980,247                  1,016,088  

 
Purchase of property and equipment         (7,685,083)                (2,907,442) 

 
Purchase of properties under development            (811,070)                (1,753,819) 

    
       (7,067,574)                (3,086,618) 

Cash flows from financing activities  
  

 
Financing Fees paid, net  

               
(11,920)                   (122,682) 

 
Advances of long-term debt            1,999,930                  5,268,313  

 
Units issued 

 
          8,404,032                     508,319  

 
Units redeemed        (2,547,112)                               -    

 Issuance costs (83,375) - 

 
Distribution to unitholders         (2,500,000)                (750,000) 

 Advance to Joint Venture  (85,880) - 

 
Repayment of Debenture and short-term debt                           -                   (3,050,000) 

 
Repayment of long-term debt         (1,794,260)                (2,090,411) 

    
3,381,415                                    (236,491) 

Net decrease (increase) in cash during year            1,334,688                    215,419  

Cash, beginning of year              988,404                    772,985  

Cash, end of year   $     2,323,092   $               988,404  

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash transactions 
  

 
Non-cash proceeds from property sales   $        233,454   $                158,505  

 

Vendor take-back loans receivable  $        133,000   $                             -    

 

The accompanying notes form and integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

1.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Nature of Operations 
Northern Vision Development Limited Partnership (the "Partnership") was formed as a limited partnership under the laws of 

Alberta on January 15, 2004 and was extra-provincially registered under the Partnership and Business Names Act of the Yukon 

Territory on March 22, 2004. The Partnership's principal business is the acquisition, development and sale of commercial, industrial 

and residential properties, and operation of hotels in the Yukon. 

The Partnership consists of a general partner, Northern Vision Development Corp. (the “General Partner”), and a number of 

limited partners holding partnership units (collectively the “Partners”). 

Pursuant to the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement, the General Partner has unlimited liability for the debts and 

obligations of the Partnership. The liability of each Limited Partner is limited to the amount of capital contributed or agreed to 

be contributed, the Limited Partner's assumed share of the mortgage financing, and their share of undistributed income. 

Basis of Accounting 

These consolidated financial statements reflect only the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the Partnership and, therefore, 

do not include any other assets, liabilities, revenues or expenses of the Partners or the liability of the Partners for income taxes on 

earnings of the Partnership. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards 

for private enterprises (“ASPE”). 

Basis of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Partnership, its controlled subsidiaries and its 

proportionate share of the assets, liabilities and operations of its joint venture interests. Control is achieved when the Partnership 

has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. All 

intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation. The financial statements of the Partnership’s subsidiaries 

are prepared using consistent accounting policies and the same reporting date as the Partnership. These consolidated financial 

statements include the accounts of the Partnership, 45978 Yukon Inc. and Iditarod Landscaping Inc. (wholly owned 

subsidiaries), the Partnership’s 50% interest in the Dawson Downtown Partnership and its joint venture interests. 

Inventories 

Inventories consist of hotel supplies, which are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on a first in, 

first out basis. A provision is raised when it is believed that the costs incurred will not be recovered on the ultimate sale of the 

inventory.  

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Capitalized costs include all direct costs related to 

development, construction and upgrades, other than ordinary repairs and maintenance, carrying costs including interest on 

debt and property taxes during construction,  and land acquisition costs. Amortization is provided using the following annual 

rates: 

 Method Rate 

Automotive Declining balance basis 30% 

Buildings Declining balance basis 4% 

Computer equipment Declining balance basis 30% 

Computer software Declining balance basis 30% 

Furniture and fixtures Declining balance basis 20% 

Paving and landscaping Declining balance basis 8% 



 
 

NVDLP Annual Report to Unitholders  
As at and for the year ended December 31, 2017 

 

 PAGE 30 

1.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

 
Long-lived assets consist of property and equipment, properties under development and properties held for sale. Long-lived 

assets are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset’s carrying value might 

be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized when the asset’s carrying value exceeds the estimated future undiscounted cash 

flows from the asset’s use and eventual disposition. The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the excess of the 

carrying value of the asset over the fair value. Any impairment is included in income for the year. 

Income Taxes 

The Partnership is a limited partnership. As a result, the Partnership's earnings or losses for income tax purposes are included in 

the tax returns of the Partners. Accordingly, no recognition has been given to current or future income taxes in the accompanying 

consolidated financial statements of the Partnership. Net earnings for financial statement purposes may differ significantly from 

taxable income reportable to the Partners as a result of differences between the tax basis and financial reporting basis of assets and 

liabilities and the taxable income allocation requirements under the Partnership agreement. 

Revenue Recognition 

Properties are rented to tenants pursuant to rental agreements, which provide for various rental terms with non-refundable 

rental payments. Revenue from rental agreements is recognized over the rental term as amounts become due and when collection 

is reasonably assured. 

Revenue from the sale of real estate is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, amounts are fixed and 
determinable, all material conditions of the sale have been fulfilled, collection is reasonably assured and title to the property has 
transferred. 

Hotel revenue is recognized as services are provided and when collection is reasonably assured, and refundable tenant security 
deposits are recorded as a liability until repaid to the tenant. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with ASPE requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 

of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Areas 

requiring significant management estimates relate to the determination of the recoverability of accounts and loans receivable, 

the fair market value and any potential impairments of property and equipment and property under development and held for sale, 

and the useful lives of property and equipment.  Actual results could differ from those estimates and may have an impact on future 

periods. 

Properties Held for Sale 

The Partnership classifies properties as held for sale when management approves and commits to a formal plan of sale and it 

does not believe it can utilize the lands for active development. Properties held for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net 

realizable value, with net realizable value being determined as the estimated selling price less estimated costs to sell. 

Property under Development 

 
The Partnership classifies properties under development as those that are or will be actively developed for the purposes of 
generating rental income or subsequent revenue from sales for the Partnership. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Non-Monetary Transactions 

All non-monetary transactions are measured at fair value unless: 

• the transaction lacks commercial substance; 
• the transaction is an exchange of a product or property held for sale in the ordinary course of business for a product or property 

to be sold in the same line of business to facilitate sales to customer other than the parties to the exchange; 
• neither the fair value of the assets received, nor the fair value of the assets given up is reliably measurable; or 
• the transaction is a non-monetary, non-reciprocal transfer to owners that represents a spin-off or other form of restructuring 

or liquidation. 

 
A non-monetary transaction has commercial substance when the Partnership’s future cash flows are expected to change 

significantly as a result of the transaction. 

Jointly Controlled Assets 

Jointly controlled assets are investments which the Partnership has joint control with one or more unaffiliated entities. Jointly 

controlled assets are accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method as follows: 

• the consolidated balance sheet includes the Partnership’s proportionate share of the assets and the liabilities of the jointly 
controlled assets; 

• the consolidated statement of operations includes the Partnership's proportionate share of the income and expenses of the 
jointly controlled asset; and 

• gains on transactions between the Partnership and its jointly controlled assets are eliminated to the extent of the Partnership's 
interest in the jointly controlled assets and losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of 
the asset. 

Jointly Controlled Enterprises 

The Partnership has elected to perform an analysis of its interest in each jointly controlled enterprise to determine whether it 
represents a right to the net assets or rights to the individual assets and obligations for the individual liabilities of jointly controlled 
enterprise.  

Financial Instruments 

Accounts receivable, loans receivable, accounts payable, short term loans, customer deposits, convertible debentures and long-term 

debt are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. Financing and transaction costs associated 

with long term debt are netted against the carrying value of the long-term debt and are amortized over the term of the financing 

using the straight-line method. Financial assets are recognized on the date the Partnership commits to purchase or sell the asset 

and derecognized when the Partnership no longer controls the contractual rights that comprise the financial instrument, which is 

normally the case when the instrument is sold, or all the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to an independent third 

party. 

 

2. Cash 
 

 2017 2016 

 
Restricted $       130,244 $       41,200 
Unrestricted 2,192,848 947,204 
 

 $    2,323,092 $     988,404 
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3. Property and Equipment 

 2017   2016 

Cost Amortization Net Book Value Cost Amortization Net Book Value 

 
Automotive  $          237,817  $           172,427   $                  65,390   $          189,440  $         158,734   $               30,706  

Buildings        52,134,251            10,298,385               41,835,866         47,231,746           9,269,639            37,962,107  

Computer equipment       

and software              858,685                553,757                    304,928               721,738               459,180                  262,558  

Furniture and fixtures          4,756,207            3,052,597                 1,703,610            4,206,819          2,770,543              1,436,276  

Land and improvements          9,651,459  -                9,651,459            8,894,102                            -               8,894,102  

Paving and landscaping          1,826,363             962,581                       863,781            1,851,999               885,563               966,436  

  $   69,464,782 
4 

 $      15,039,747  $         54,425,035   $    63,095,844   $   13,543,659   $       49,552,185  

 

During the year, the partnership recorded a gain of $157,783 (2016 - $104,169) from the sale of Plant, Property and Equipment. Until 

April 17th one of the hotels was closed for renovations; expenses of $156,349 (2016 $43,572) and interest of $22,801 (2016 - $15,175) 

were capitalized as part of this renovation.  

 

4. Properties under Development 
  

  2017 2016 

 Land and improvements $   4,626,090 $     3,815,020 
 

Properties under development consists of assets under active development or lands identified for development by the Partnership for 
sale to third parties. During year costs of $389,931 (2016 - $36,944) and interest of $79,366 (2016 $29,988) were capitalized.  

 

5. Properties Held for Sale 
 

   
  2017 2016 

 Land and improvements $                  - $     375,206 
 
 

Properties held for sale consist of land and completed property developments and are accounted for at the lower of cost and estimated 
net realizable value. There were no development and other costs capitalized in the year (2016 - $7,115). During the year, the 
Partnership recorded a net gain of $199,073 (2016 - $106,516) related to sales of property held for sale. At year end the partnership 
had no remaining inventory and nor any plans to acquire more in the foreseeable future 

 

6. Other Assets  
2017 

  
2016 

 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 

 
$ 301,601 

  
$          263,906

  Goodwill - Mighty Wash 308,719  308,719 

Other assets 19,206  19,206 

 $ 629,526  $ 591,831 
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7.   Long Term Debt 
 

As at December 31, 2017 there was $259,923 (2016 - $283,417) in deferred financing fees netted against long term debt. During 

the year, amortization of deferred financing fees amounted to $27,639 (2016 - $32,342), and $11,920 in new fees were incurred in 

the year (2016 - $122,682). 

 2017 2016 
 

Loan payable to First Nations Bank - interest at 5.28%, due October 1, 2018,  
with monthly payments of principal and interest of $4,543 secured by a first 
mortgage on 2193 and 2195 2nd Avenue, Whitehorse and a general assignment 
over rental income from the properties. 

 
 $          579,289  

 
 $          607,768  

     Loan payable to RBC - interest at 3.01%, due May 1, 2018, payable in equal 
installments of $7,481 principal and interest, secured by a first mortgage on the 
property of 9016 Quartz Road, Whitehorse. 

 

          
1,106,370  

 
          1,157,422  

     Loan payable to RBC - interest at RBC’s prime rate plus 1%, due January 4, 2019, 
payable with monthly principal payments of $14,400 plus interest, secured by a 
first mortgage and assignment of rents from properties at 2237 2nd Avenue 
Whitehorse. 

 
2,487,679            

 
          2,663,803  

     Loan payable to Yukon Housing Corporation - interest at 5%, due May 31st, 2019 
with annual interest payments of $67,473 secured by Lot 117, Whitehorse, YT 
2014-0069 

 

          
1,451,327  

 
1,349,470 

     Promissory Note payable to a society at 4%, due no later than October 31st, 2019 
with monthly payments of $9,307; secured by a second charge on property at 
2237 2nd Avenue, Whitehorse   

 
190,379                

 
291,968 

     Loan payable to Scotia Bank - interest at 3.04%, with fixed monthly repayments 
of $4,453 of principal and interest, due April 30, 2021 secured by a first 
mortgage and assignment of rents over two commercial units at 2237 2nd 
Avenue, Whitehorse 

 

              
739,806  

 
774,121 

     Loan payable to BDC - interest at BDC's floating base rate less 1%, due March 23, 
2029, with monthly principal repayments of $5,000 secured by land and building 
on Lot 2A, Block B 335, Plan 2007-0028. 

 

              
676,354  

 

              
455,988  

     Loan payable to BDC - interest at BDC's floating base rate less 1%, due February 
23, 2029, with monthly principal repayments of $2,436 plus interest, secured by 
the following: first mortgage and assignment of rents on the Partnership's 
interest in the land and buildings at 166 & 170 Titanium Way, Whitehorse. 

 
         - 

 

              
277,844  

          Loan payable to BDC - interest at BDC's floating base rate less 1%, due June 23, 
2032, with monthly principal repayments of $1,837 plus interest, secured by the 
following: first mortgage and assignment of rents on the Partnership's interest in 
the land and building at 166 & 170 Titanium Way, Whitehorse. 

 

              
319,725  

 

              
338,100  

     Loan payable to BDC -with fixed monthly repayments of $52,350 principal plus 
interest, at 4% due April 30, 2034 secured by a first mortgage over 3 hotel 
properties.  

 

        
14,458,952  

 
13,460,174 

     Loan payable to BDC - interest at 4%, with fixed monthly repayments of $19,230 
principal plus interest at 4%, due April 30, 2034 secured by a first mortgage and 
assignment of rents at 2180/2190 2nd Avenue Whitehorse  

 

          
3,725,031  

 
3,951,379 
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7.   Long Term Debt (continued) 
 

 2017 2016 

 

Balance brought forward 
 

 $    25,741,550  
 

 $       25,332,207  

     Loan payable to First Nations Bank - interest at 4.45% due October 31, 2020, 
with monthly principal repayments of $25,997 plus interest, secured by the 
following: first mortgage and assignment of rents on the partnership's interest 
in the land and building at 4201 4th Avenue, Whitehorse. 

 
          5,548,919  

 
          5,855,675  

     Loan payable to Tr'ondek Hwech'in Trust - interest at 5%, due October 31, 
2020, with annual principal payments of $35,709 plus interest due on June, 
July and August. Secured by a mortgage in property at 1026 Second Avenue, 
Dawson City. 

 
              329,473  

 
              347,032  

          Loan payable to BDC - interest at BDC's floating base rate less 1.0%, due May 
23, 2031, with monthly principal repayments of $5,000 plus interest, secured 
by the following: first mortgage on 121 Copper Road; general assignment over 
property and equipment on the property. 

 
              368,773  

 
              396,208 

Loan payable to Scotia Bank - interest at 4.23%, with fixed monthly 
repayments of $1,389 of principal and interest, due July 31, 2022 secured by a 
first mortgage and assignment of rents over a commercial unit at 2237 2nd 
Avenue, Whitehorse  241,330  - 

     
 

 
  

 

  

Total  

 

 $    32,230,045  

 

 $    31,931,122  

 

 

The BDC floating base rate at December 31st was 5.3% (2016 – 4.7%) and RBC and First Nations bank prime rate at year end was 

3.2% (2016- 2.7%).  

 

Principal repayments on long term debt due over the next five years and thereafter are as follows: 

 

2018  $      3,532,976 

2019          5,442,726 

2020 6,261,821 

2021 1,284,830 

2022 1,284,830 

Thereafter         14,682,968 

 $   32,489,968 

 

The Partnership’s debt agreements contain financial covenants which require minimum levels of tangible equity, debt service 

coverage, limitations on borrowings, and limitations on the use of proceeds of asset sales. The Partnership was in compliance with 

all of its financial covenants as at December 31st, 2017. 

 

8.  Operating Line of Credit 

The Partnership has available an operating line of credit with a maximum authorized limit of $500,000 of which $nil was drawn 
down at December 31, 2017 (2016 - $nil). The line of credit bears interest at the bank prime rate plus 1.0% per annum and is 
secured by a mortgage over certain of the Partnership’s properties. 
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9.  Financial Instruments and Risk Management 

Credit Risk 

The Partnership is exposed to credit risk resulting from the possibility that a customer, tenant or counterparty to a financial 

instrument defaults on their financial obligations; if there is a concentration of transactions carried out with the same 

counterparty; or if financial obligations which have similar economic characteristics such that they could be similarly affected by 

changes in economic conditions. The Partnership’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk relate 

primarily to accounts and loans receivable. To mitigate the credit risk, the Partnership has accounts receivable widely 

distributed among its customer base, performs regular credit assessments of its customers, obtains advance deposits or with 

respect to loans receivable, takes a security interest in the property sold or the tenant’s assets or personal guarantees. The 

Partnership therefore believes that there is acceptable credit risk associated with the collection of its accounts or loans receivable. 

The Partnership has recorded an allowance of $55,916 (2016 - $40,680) in respect of accounts receivable where collection is 

doubtful. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows associated with a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

interest rates. Changes in market interest rates may have an effect on the cash flows associated with some financial assets and 

liabilities, known as cash flow risk, and on the fair value of other financial assets or liabilities, known as price risk. The Partnership 

is exposed to interest rate risk with respect to its short term financial instruments all of which are expected to be realized within 

one to two years. As described in note 7, a substantial portion of the Partnership’s long term debt bears interest at floating rates. 

Fluctuations in these rates will impact the cost of financing incurred and cash flows available in the future. 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will not be able to meet its obligations as they fall due. The Partnership monitors its 

liquidity on a regular basis and will draw on existing credit facilities or obtain new financing as necessary. 

10.  Loans Receivable 

 

 
 

2017 

  
 

2016 
Loans receivable (Note 12) $ 569,403  $ 641,206 

Mortgages receivable 272,515  584,470 

Advances to joint ventures (Note 12) 96,845  104,108 

 $ 938,763  $ 1,329,784 

(i) Loans Receivable 
Loans receivable represent advances to or on behalf of commercial tenants for the purpose of completing leasehold 

improvements on properties owned by the Partnership. The terms of the loans do not exceed 15 years, with interest rates 

ranging from 1% to 9%. The total interest earned on the loans in the year was $55,978 (2016 ‑ $69,738). The maximum credit risk 

exposure associated with the loans receivable occurs if the borrower defaults on repayment of the loan. Therefore, the carrying 

value of the loans receivable balance represents the Partnership's exposure to the related credit risk without taking into account 

any rent that may be outstanding and the remaining term of the commercial lease or any collateral or any other credit security. 

The balance of loans receivable includes a provision for impairment of $127,925 ($2016 - $65,300). 

 

(ii) Mortgages Receivable 
Mortgages receivable represent vendor take back loans made to purchasers of properties sold by the Partnership. In all cases, 

security is provided by the underlying property. Interest is charged at rates ranging between 5% and 7% per annum. The total 

interest earned on the loans in the year was $5,014 (2016 - $50,714). The exposure to the credit risk associated with the 

mortgages receivable occurs if the borrower’s defaults on repayment of the mortgage. Therefore, the carrying value of the 

mortgage receivable balance represents the Partnership's maximum exposure to the related credit risk without taking into 

account any collateral or any other credit enhancements. There were no impairment provisions recorded on the mortgages 

receivable as at December 31, 2017.  
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10.  Loans Receivable (continued) 
 
(iii) Advances to Joint Ventures  
Advances to Joint Ventures are made to assist working capital requirements and represent advances made in excess of the 

Partnership’s proportionate share in the jointly controlled assets. Interest is charged at 5% per annum when the other joint 

venturer does not contribute their proportionate share. The total interest collected in the year was $11,780 (2016 - $10,801).  

 

11. Related Party Transactions and Balances 
 
During the year, the Partnership had the following transactions with parties that were either partners, employees or companies 

controlled by partners or employees of the Partnership: 

  

                    2017  
 

                   2016  

Paid: 
    Financing charges and interest paid to various investors  
    in which the Partnership has proportionate interests 

 
 $          18,149  

 
 $         9,298  

Fees paid to Directors of the Partnership 
 

        185,773  
 

         138,162  

Rents paid to joint ventures in which the Partnership had an existing 
    proportionate interest 

 
        86,832  

 
           78,167  

Other fees - consists of miscellaneous and contractor payments paid to 
employees, partners or companies controlled by employees of the Partnership 

 
41,879 

 

                
62,558 

 
Received or recovery from: 

    Rent received from a company controlled by an employee of the Partnership  
    and a joint venture in which the Partnership has a proportionate interest 

 
 $     61,509   

 
 $     51,258  

Interest received from a company controlled by an employee of the Partnership 
   on a short-term loan and loans to employees and joint ventures 

 
         15,031  

 
         34,983  

Other fees - consists of miscellaneous payments received for services and 
    reimbursements for recoveries from joint ventures in which the Partnership 

   has proportionate interests and related companies 
 

         42,732  
 

         40,297  
 
Loans: 

    Short-term loans due to unitholders of the Partnership 
 

    336,110  
 

    354,145  

Loans advanced to Employees of the Partnership  158,300  262,848 
 

The related party transactions occurred in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange value, which is the 

amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. 

 

As at December 31, 2017, the Partnership had the following amounts recorded in accounts receivable and accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities: 

• Accounts receivable from related parties of $74,130 (2016 ‑ $100,163). 

• Amounts due from its joint venture partners of $5,491 (2016-16,278).  

• Accounts payable and accrued liabilities owing to related parties of $216,529 (2016 ‑ $134,064). 

• Amounts due to its joint venture partners of $3,485 (2016 - $6,231).  
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12.    Segments 
As at December 31, 2017, the Partnership had four reportable segments: hotels, rentals, property held for sale and 

property under development. Hotel operations consist of room rental and food and beverage services. Rental properties 

consist of commercial and residential properties held under long term lease. Property held for sale consists of residential 

properties and commercial lots that  were publicly available for sale. Property under development consists of lands and 

buildings under construction or held for future development. 

2017 
 

 

  Hotels 

 

  Rentals  

Property 

    held for sale  
Property under 

  development  

 

  Other  

 

  Total  

Revenue $   15,041,403 $ 2,842,187 $ 581,166 $ - $ 441,157 $   18,905,914 

Amortization 791,822 1,093,682 - - 77,725 1,963,229 

Interest income - - - - 72,806 72,806 

Interest expense 588,424 645,058 - - 43,307 1,276,789 

Net income (loss) 2,991,040 624,941 199,072 - (677,164) 3,137,889 

Properties and equipment 18,834,771 35,353,804 - 4,626,090 236,459 59,051,124 

2016 
 

 

  Hotels  

 

  Rentals  

Property 

    held for sale  
Property under 

  development  

 

  Other  

 

  Total  

Revenue $   13,509,051 $ 2,763,706 $ 202,527 $ - $ 419,723 $   16,465,805 

Amortization 790,817 1,122,644 - - 51,122 1,964,583 

Interest income - - - - 99,297 99,297 

Interest expense 460,423 715,396 - - 92,938 1,268,757 

Net income (loss) 2,419,716 380,676 106,516 - (1,295,308) 1,611,600 

Properties and equipment 16,769,733 32,706,589 375,206 3,815,020 191,896 53,858,444 

 
13.  Partners’ Equity 
At December 31, 2017 there are 23,965,715 partnership units outstanding (2016 – 21,291,434). During the year 2,674,281 units 

were issued for proceeds of $8,404,032 and 1,212,985 units were redeemed for $2,547,112 (2016 261,464 units issued for cash 

proceeds of $508,319) 

 

14. Change in Presentation of Comparative Financial Statements 
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.  

 

15. Jointly Held Assets and Jointly Controlled Enterprises 
 

Name Interest Activity Inception 

Titanium Way Joint Venture 67% Lease of commercial properties 2008 

Northern Carcross Joint Venture 50% Lease of commercial property 2013 

Dawson Downtown Hotel 50% Hotel Operations 2013 

 

The Partnership’s proportionate share of the assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses of the various operations are included 

in these consolidated financial statements are as follows. The Partnership is liable for the liabilities of the jointly held assets to 

the extent of its proportionate share in each operation. 
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15. Jointly Held Assets and Jointly Controlled Enterprises (continued) 

   

 
2017 2016 

   Cash   $         163,967   $         111,343  

Accounts Receivable                 37,128                 71,846  

Prepaid Expenses                 13,885                 24,562  

Inventory                 34,410                 32,515  

 
            249,391              240,266  

Property and Equipment           1,956,075           2,366,413  

Organization costs                      125                      125  

 
 $      2,205,591   $      2,606,804  

  
                        -    

Accounts Payable and accrued liablities   $           58,137   $         180,770  

Governmentt remittances                 29,589                 22,421  

 
               87,726              203,191  

Long term debt              649,197           1,074,196  

 
            736,923           1,277,387  

Equity           1,468,668           1,329,417  

 
 $      2,205,591   $      2,606,804  

 

 
2017 2016 

Revenues  
  Hotels  $               1,393,423     $        1,216,277  

Rentals                          91,746                        162,600  

Gains                          65,266                          35,065  

 
 $               1,550,434   $        1,413,942  

Expenses  
  Hotels                    1,336,292                    1,151,211  

Amortization                        101,602                        121,443  

Property                          35,920                          68,370  

Interest                          28,494                          32,178  

Expenses                    1,502,307                    1,373,202  

Net income   $                     48,127   $              40,740  

 
 2017 2016 

Cash flows from operating activities   $                     77,763   $           182,009  

Cash flows from investing activities   $                   283,222   $           243,204  

Cash flows from financing activities   $                   (98,628)  $           (65,689) 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 
General Partner – Northern Vision Development Corp. 
 
Board of Directors      Head Office 
 
Shirley Adamson2      Suite 209, 212 Main Street 
Hannes Kovac2       Whitehorse, YT 
Ian McAuley3        Y1A 2B1 
Hon. Piers McDonald, Chairman1,2,4       

Myron Tetreault 1,5      Phone: 867-668-7886 
Robert Savin4,5       Fax: 867-668-7851 
Lori Simcox1       www.nvdlp.com    
 

1  Denotes member of the Audit Committee  
2  Denotes member of the Development Committee 
3  Denotes member of the Hotel Committee  
4  Denotes member of the Governance and Compensation Committee 
5 Denotes member of the Financing Committee  

 

 
Management       Calgary Office 
 
Richard Thompson, CEO      Suite 700, 933 17th Avenue S.W. 
Philip Fitzgerald, CFO, President Hotels Division   Calgary, AB  
Denny Kobayashi, President Real Estate Division   T2T 5R6 
Dylan Soo, General Manager Hotels Division     
Adam Gerle, General Manager Downtown Hotel   Phone: 403-660-0073 
Kristine Hildebrand, Controller   
Alexis Brandt, Director Human Resources   Legal Counsel 
Rudy Colasanzio, Director Maintenance    Bennett Jones    
        Calgary, AB 
         

Barrett Law  
Whitehorse, YT 
 

        Auditors 
        Deloitte LLP 
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